
 

Licensing Sub-Committee agenda 
Date: Tuesday 9 April 2024 

Time: 2.30 pm 

Venue: Via Video Conference 

Membership: 

P Griffin, D Town and A Wood (Chairman) 

Webcasting notice 

Please note: this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the council's 
website. At the start of the meeting the chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is 
being filmed. 

You should be aware that the council is a data controller under the Data Protection Act. 
Data collected during this webcast will be retained in accordance with the council’s 
published policy. 

Therefore by entering the meeting room, you are consenting to being filmed and to the 
possible use of those images and sound recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes. 
If members of the public do not wish to have their image captured they should ask the 
committee clerk, who will advise where to sit. 

If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the monitoring officer at 
monitoringofficer@buckinghamshire.gov.uk. 

Agenda Item 
 

Page No 
 
1 Introductory remarks by the Chairman  
    
2 Apologies for absence  
    
3 Declarations of interest  
 To receive any disclosure of disclosable pecuniary interests by 

Members relating to any items on the agenda. If any Member is 
uncertain as to whether an interest should be disclosed, he or she is 
asked if possible to contact the District Solicitor prior to the meeting.  

 

mailto:monitoringofficer@buckinghamshire.gov.uk


 
Members are reminded that if they are declaring an interest, they 
should state the nature of that interest whether or not they are 
required to withdraw from the meeting. 
  

4 Hearing Procedure Rules 3 - 10 
 To note the hearing procedure rules and virtual licensing sub-

committee procedural rules.  
 

 

 
5 New Hub and Off Licence, 25a High Street, Chesham, HP5 1BG 11 - 72 
 To consider an application under s.17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for a 

new premises licence in respect of New Hub and Off Licence, 25a High 
Street, Chesham, HP5 1BG (report attached). 
 

 

 
If you would like to attend a meeting, but need extra help to do so, for example because of 
a disability, please contact us as early as possible, so that we can try to put the right support 
in place. 

For further information please contact: Liz Hornby at democracy@buckinghamshire.gov.uk  

mailto:democracy@buckinghamshire.gov.uk


1 
 

Addendum Licensing and Regulatory Sub-Committee Virtual Procedural Rules 

Procedure at Hearings before the Licensing Sub-Committee(“LSC”) in relation to matters under the 
Licensing Act 2003 as amended (“The 2003 Act”) except Interim Hearings (Summary Review of a 
Premises Licence) conducted pursuant to Section 53B of the Licensing Act 2003, as amended 
(separate Procedure) or as otherwise provided. 

 
Hearings for Gambling Premises are dealt with under the Gambling Act 2005 as amended. 

 

Introduction 

The Licensing Act 2003 and the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearing) Regulations 2005 provide flexibility to 
Licensing Authorities in determining their own hearing procedures.  Buckinghamshire Council has 
decided to hold such hearings remotely in accordance with these procedural rules. 

Administration in Relation to the Hearing 

Prior written notice of the hearing will have been given to the interested/relevant parties. 
 

(a) Where a party has informed the Council that they will not be attending or be represented 
at the hearing it may proceed in their absence.  

(b) Where a party has not replied to the notice, does not attend and is not represented then 
the LSC may proceed with the hearing in that party’s absence or adjourn the hearing if it 
is considered necessary in the public interest to do so. 

(c) If a party has indicated they will attend but does not appear, that party must inform the 
Council of any delay - with reasons - and in consideration thereof the LSC can decide to 
proceed with the hearing or adjourn to later the same day or another time. If a party is 
more than 15 minutes late and has not contacted the Council with details of any delay – 
the LSC shall proceed with the hearing unless it is in the public interest not to do so and 
shall adjourn the hearing to later on the same day or another date. 

 
If the hearing is held in a party’s absence, the LSC will still consider the application, representation 
or notice made by that party. 

 
A hearing can be dispensed with if all parties give notice that they consider a hearing unnecessary. 
If this is the case the application/notice will be dealt with by way of a determination. 

Representations can be withdrawn by prior notice up to 1 working day before the hearing or orally 
at the hearing. 

At the hearing, any party can be assisted or represented by any person whether or not that person 
is legally qualified. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



2 
 

Account can be taken of documentary or other information produced by a party in support of their 
application, representation or notice (as applicable) if provided either at least 1 working day before 
the hearing or - with the consent of all other parties - at the hearing, in which case sufficient copies 
are required to be provided for all relevant parties. Any party wishing to call another person (other 
than a person representing them) to make oral representations must provide details of this to the 
Council within the time stated in the Notice of Hearing which the Council will serve on the Parties. At 
the beginning of the hearing the LSC will consider any such requests and confirm whether permission 
is granted for that person to speak. 

 
The LSC may disregard any information which is not considered relevant to the 
application/representation/notice and the promotion of the licensing objectives. 

The purpose of a hearing is to enable those with a right to appear to amplify their written application 
or representation and to test the case of their opponents. It is also to assist the LSC to gather 
evidence and understand the relevant issues. The parties (including other persons on their behalf) 
will be allowed an equal reasonable period of time to address the hearing and ask questions. The 
Chairman may set a maximum period of time on how long each party may speak, progressing 
without undue delays and ensuring that there is a fair hearing. Where the representations made 
relate to the same or similar issues, a spokesperson should be appointed where possible to speak 
on behalf of any person who has made a written representation. 

The Decision of the LSC will be made after the close of the hearing when the LSC retires with the 
Democratic Services Officer and the Legal Advisor to the sub-committee in a private session to 
consider all the evidence and submissions made at the hearing. 

The decision of the LSC will be communicated to all parties by way of a written Decision Notice issued 
by Legal Services. They will endeavour to serve the notice within 5 working days of the hearing and 
if there is to be a delay in issuing such a notice; the licensing officer will communicate will all parties. 
The notice will be dated and set out the provisions of the right to appeal to the Magistrates Court. 

The LSC may depart from this procedure (as varied/amended from time to time based on changes 
to law and practice) if it considers reasonably necessary and proportionate. 

Access to Information 

The Council can hold and alter the frequency and occurrence of hearing without requirement for 
further notice. 

These Regulations make provision for local authority members and officers, and the public, to have 
access to documents without attending council buildings and it will be sufficient for local 
authorities to publish the documents on their website. This includes notices, agendas, reports, 
background papers and minutes. The Proper Officer will give the requisite notice to the public of the 
time of the hearing, and the agenda, together with details of how to join the hearing which will be 
available on the website. 

Page 4



3 
 

Time and Place of Hearing 

All hearings will  be held remotely, including by (but not limited to) telephone conferencing, video 
conferencing, live webcast, and live interactive streaming unless a party can show good and 
sufficient reason why the hearing should be held in person.  Where a party has notified the Council 
that they wish to attend a remote hearing but are unable to access the hearing remotely, for 
whatever reason, the Council will endeavour to made to provision for them to be able to view the 
hearing at Council offices.  The Council will use Microsoft Teams to hold virtual hearings and will 
invite external participants to virtual hearings, if any, via email or telephone. Virtual hearings will be 
webcast where the hearing is held in public via a link published on the meeting webpage. 

The Constitution states that when reasonably practical, a sub-committee hearing should be held at 
the Council facility which is closest to the premises or issue that is the subject of the hearing. 
However, this requirement is disapplied in respect of remote hearings.   

During the Hearing 

It is a requirement for such hearings that: 

a) proper notice is given, with all papers served timeously on the authority and published online; 
b) the actual parties to the hearing are able to participate; 
c) any member of the public can see or hear, albeit not participate in, the hearing. 

 
Although held in a virtual format, hearings dealing with new licences or variations to existing licences 
will follow the standard procedure. Panel Members may ask questions of any party at any time. 
Questions are usually taken after each person has spoken. It is helpful to undertake a document 
check at the start of the hearing. 

In terms of issues that may arise during the hearing the following rules apply:- 

Quorum for Hearings 

The rules for quorum will still apply. This is 3 Councillors for a licensing or regulatory sub-committee. 
It is also considered good practice to have a reserve member, in case of interests. The constitution 
states that if a quorum is not present within 15 minutes of the scheduled start of the LSC or such 
longer time as allowed by the Chairman, the business of the hearing will be adjourned. The 
Chairman may allow for flexibility around the start time of the hearing where there are any technical 
issues. 

In the event of any apparent failure of the technology the Chairman should immediately determine 
if the hearing is still quorate. The Chairman could adjourn for 10-15 minutes to allow the connection 
to be re-established. If an individual remote participation fails the Chairman may call a short 
adjournment. As the hearing must have 3 members present, the hearing will be reliant on the lost 
connection being re-established to ensure all members are present for the entire discussion in order 
to hear all of the facts and vote on the matter. 

Only 3 members are permitted on LSC for each hearing (as per Section 9 of the Licensing Act 2003 
and the Constitution Terms of Reference for the LSC). The reserve member is present in case an 
interest arises at the beginning of the hearing or one of the 3 members identified as being on the 
LSC fails to attend the virtual hearing. It is only those 3 members who have been identified as being 
on the LSC for that hearing who can ask questions of the other parties.  

Page 5



4 
 

A reserve member would not be able to participate if the technology fails for one of the members 
present as whilst they would be listening they will not have taken an active role nor been included in 
the process/asked to see if they have any questions etc. 

 
Attendance at hearings and webcasting 

A roll call or introductions will be made at the start of the hearing to record those present. There is 
no requirement for councillors to sign their names on the attendance sheets when attending a 
virtual hearing. The Democratic Services Officer will maintain a list of attendance throughout the 
hearing. 

To be classified as a ‘member in attendance’ and attend the hearing remotely, the following 
conditions must be satisfied; 

a) Councillors sitting on the Sub-Committee must be able to hear and be heard and (where 
practicable) see and be seen by parties in attendance at the hearing.  

b) This full requirement also extends to parties attending to exercise a right to speak at the 
hearing. 

c) All other members of the public must as a minimum be able to hear and if practicable see the 
proceedings. 

In practice this means that if councillors and speaking members of the public can be heard and hear 
each other and other members of the public not speaking can hear, this would fulfil the 
requirements of holding a virtual hearing. 

Members of the press and public may only be excluded from a hearing in accordance with the Access 
to Information Rules. 

The Regulations state that hearings being open to the public include access by remote means. Such 
access includes (but is not limited to) video conferencing, live webcast, and live interactive streaming 
and where a hearing is accessible to the public through such remote means the hearing is open to the 
public whether or not members of the public are able to attend the hearing in person. For clarity, a 
hearing recorded and then posted online after the event would not satisfy this requirement. 

In the event that the live webcast fails and cannot be resumed the hearing will be opened and 
adjourned to allow for it to take place at a later date (the date and time of which will be fixed prior 
to the matter being adjourned). 

The people on the Teams call who are present throughout the hearing are the Members of the Sub- 
Committee, any officer supporting the hearing and those who have submitted valid representations, 
applicant and/or legal representative. The public gallery, where Members can sit and observe the 
hearing alongside members of the public, is the webcast version.  

Conflicts of Interest  

Councillors should consider if they have an interest, and, if required, seek advice from the Monitoring 
Officer, or their deputy, before the hearing starts. If a Councillor appointed to a licensing hearing 
considers that their interest is prejudicial they should notify Democratic Services as soon as possible 
so that an alternative councillor can be appointed to the licensing hearing. 
 

Members of the LSC must consider beforehand if they need to declare any personal interests and 

Page 6



5 
 

whether their personal interest is also a prejudicial interest in which case they will not be able to 
attend the hearing. Members who have any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests will not be able to attend 
the hearing either.  Members should also consider beforehand if they have or would be considered 
to have predetermined the matter in which case they should also distance themselves from the 
determination of the matter and not attend the hearing.   

Minutes of hearings 

The Minutes of hearing will be published on the website.  

Questions 

Parties can ask questions of other parties in accordance with the procedure below. The Chairman 
can stop a party asking questions if they feel the questions are unnecessary. Parties are expected to 
treat other parties with respect and any form of harassment or excessive questioning will not be 
tolerated. In such cases the Chairman will ask the party to discontinue that type of questioning. The 
Chairman can require any person (including any of the parties) who is disrupting the proceedings to 
leave the hearing. 

Order of business (as normal) 
1. The Chairman will open the hearing and start the introductions of the LSC and Officers and ask 

each party to introduce themselves. The Chairman will confirm that if a party is not present their 
representations/application will have been read and will be considered in reaching the decision. 

 
2. The Chairman will address any interest arising under the Code of Conduct. 

 
3. The Chairman will consider any submitted requests from a party for permission for another 

person to appear at the virtual Hearing and any other procedural matters. If necessary, the sub- 
committee will retire to deliberate before making a decision. 

 
4. If all parties present confirm that they have seen and understand the procedure to be followed 

at the virtual hearing and agree they are ready to proceed then the hearing shall commence as 
set out from para 9 below. 

 
5. The Chairman will remind everyone that the purpose of the virtual hearing should be borne in 

mind at all times i.e. 
 

- to enable those with a right to appear at the virtual hearing to advance their point of view 
and concerns and to test the case of their opponents and 

- to assist the LSC to gather evidence and understand the relevant issues. 
 

6. The Chairman will confirm what advance papers have been received and that these have been 
read and therefore there is no need to repeat these matters. 

 
7. The Chairman will make clear that parties should only address the LSC in relation to matters 

previously raised/submitted. Late evidence to be submitted at the hearing will only be considered 
by the LSC with the consent of all parties present. 

 
8. The Chairman will then outline the procedure to be followed by reading out the order of oral 

presentations unless all parties present have confirmed that they have seen and understood the 

Page 7



6 
 

procedure and are ready to proceed with the virtual Hearing. 
 

9. The Chairman will ask the Applicant whether they wish to make any amendments to their 
application with a view to addressing issues raised by the representations. 

 
10. Order of oral presentations:- 

 
a. The Licensing Officer will present their report outlining the details of the application/notice 

and representations received. 
b. Any party may question the Licensing Officer. 
c. The Members may question the Licensing Officer. 
d. The Applicant will present their case and call any witnesses. 
e. Any other party may question the Applicant.  
f. The Members may question the Applicant. 
g. The Responsible Authorities, who made representations. will present their case in turn and 

call any witnesses. 
h. Any party may question the Responsible Authorities. 
i. Any Members may question the Responsible Authorities. 
j. Each Interested Party will present their case in turn and call any witnesses. 
k. Any other party may question the Interested Party. 
l. The Members may question the Interested Parties. 

 
Once they have made their representations under the requirements of the constitution they will 
need to switch off their microphone and not participate any further in the hearing unless they 
are asking any questions or wish to sum up. No speaking is timed. 

 
11. Before moving onto the next party at any time during the procedure above, the Chairman will 

check there are no further points the current party wishes to make or any further questions 
that need to be put to that party. 

 
12. There may be a discussion at the hearing, on a without prejudice basis, where each party will 

be asked to address/give their views on any proposed conditions and suggest any other 
appropriate conditions to assist the Sub-Committee. Any agreed conditions may be 
incorporated into the Decision Notice if the application is successful. However, the LSC are to 
determine any final conditions that will apply to the licence. 

 
13. Each party will be invited to make closing submission in the order as set out in paragraph 10. 

 
14. The Chairman will then close the hearing and the LSC will meet (privately) virtually together with 

the Democratic Services Officer and Legal Advisor for the matter to be determined. 
 

15. The LSC will come to a decision which will be sent to the Applicant and all other parties’ who 
submitted relevant representations within the time limits set out in this procedure and 
Regulations together with details of the right of appeal. 

 
When can the Chairman be interrupted? 

There are circumstances allowed for in the Constitution where the Chairman can be interrupted 
such as:- 

Page 8



7 
 

• Technology is not working effectively. 

• Officer needs to provide advice. 

• Point of order or personal explanation 

or any other area where the Constitution or Chairman allows. 

Disturbance during proceedings 

The Constitution states that if anyone interrupts proceedings the Chairman will warn the person 
concerned and if they continue to interrupt the Chairman will order their removal from the virtual 
hearing room. There may be circumstances where the person needs to be removed immediately, 
for example if they are being inappropriate, and the Chairman can do this by muting their 
microphone. If there is a general disturbance making orderly business impossible, the Chairman may 
adjourn the hearing for as long as they consider necessary. 

Adjournments 

People will remain on the call with mics muted and cameras off until the hearing starts again. The 
Chairman may also want to consider having a comfort (screen) break for longer hearings. If there is 
a problem with the technology the Chairman should pause the hearing until that issue has been 
resolved. However, this does not stop a hearing going ahead because a person does not have access 
to the required technology in the first place. If technology fails for a wholly remote hearing, and the 
hearing is no longer open to the public, any decisions made could be challenged as unlawful which 
renders the whole hearing incapable of proceeding and therefore the Chairman should adjourn until 
the remote hearing can be restored within a reasonable period, or at a time and date fixed by the 
Chairman. Any interested party eligible to speak who attends to exercise their right to speak and is 
unable to do so renders only their item incapable of proceeding unless they are happy to submit 
their comments through a written representation. 

The Council will try and achieve the best possible outcome. 

Deliberations and Exclusion of the Press and the Public 

Under Regulation 14 of the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005 the licensing authority 
may exclude the public from all or part of the hearing where it considers that the public interest in 
doing so outweighs the public interest in the hearing or part of that hearing taking place in public. 
In addition there may be information in the agenda pack pertaining to the hearing which will be 
exempt from publication or discussion in public under Schedule 12A of The Local Government Act 
1972 as amended. In these circumstances the public will be excluded from part or the whole of the 
hearing as appropriate. 

At the conclusion of the hearing, the LSC together with the Democratic Services Officer and Legal 
Advisor, will remain in a private virtual meeting in order to deliberate on the decision. Interested 
parties will then be notified of the outcome of the hearing in writing after the meeting in accordance 
with required timescales. 

Each Member in remote attendance must ensure and verbally declare that there are no other 
persons present who are not entitled to be (either hearing or seeing) consideration of such items, 
and/or recording the proceedings. 

They may depart from this procedure (as varied/amended from time to time based on changes to 

Page 9



8 
 

law and practice) if it considers it necessary and/or equitable to do so. 

 
NOTE 

IN PRODUCING THIS PROCEDURE, THE FOLLOWING HAVE BEEN CONSIDERED: - 

• Licensing Act 2003 as amended - and Explanatory Notes 
• National Guidance 
• The Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005 as amended. 
• The Human Rights Act 1998. 
• Local Government Act 1972 as amended. 

Page 10



Buckinghamshire Council              Licensing Sub-Committee Hearing Date:  
9 April 2024, 14:30 hours 

 

 
SUBJECT: 

APPLICATION FOR A NEW PREMISES LICENCE at: 
New Hub & Off Licence, 25a High Street, Chesham, HP5 1BG 

REPORT OF: Application under section 17, Licensing Act 2003 

Responsible Officer Stacey Bella – Licensing Officer 

Report Author Stacey Bella – Licensing Officer 

Ward/s Affected Chess Valley Ward 

1. Purpose of Report 

To provide Members with information enabling the determination of an application for a 
new Premises Licence, in respect of which relevant representations have been received. 

The Application has been submitted by Karanjeet Singh Khurana (“the applicant”) in respect 
of New Hub & Off Licence, 25a High Street, Chesham, HP5 1BG (“the premises”) by Personal 
Licence Courses UK, 145 Station Road, West Drayton, UB7 7ND (“the agent”). 

2. Background 

2.1 The premises consists of unit 25a High Street which is located within a central location 
in the built-up area of Chesham Town Centre.  

2.2 The premises is located within a Public Spaces Protection Order (“PSPO”) area. This is 
defined in the 2019 order made by Chiltern District Council, later extended in 2022 by 
Buckinghamshire Council (“The Council”) under the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and 
Policing Act 2014. Marked Appendix 1.  

2.3 A location plan showing the premises location is attached to this report marked 
Appendix 2. 

3. The Application 

3.1 This application is for a new Premises Licence to commence with immediate effect 
upon the decision to grant by this licensing authority. A copy of the application is 
attached to this Report marked Appendix 3. A plan of the “premises” is attached 
Appendix 4. 

3.2 The licensable activities sought are as follows: 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



Proposed activity Proposed hours 

Supply of alcohol 
Off the premises only 

Every Day 08:00 - 23:00 

Hours premises are open to the public Every Day 08:00 - 23:00 

 
4. Relevant Representations 

4.1 Responsible Authorities: 

4.1.1 The Chief Officer of Police: No objection. Appendix 5. 

4.1.2 The Licensing Authority: No objection. Appendix 6. 

4.1.3 The Fire and Rescue Authority: No objection, Appendix 7.  

4.1.4 The Local Planning Authority (Head of Sustainable Development): No 
response received. 

4.1.5 The Local Environmental Health Authority (Head of Environmental Health): 
No response received. 

4.1.6 Weights and Measures Authority (Trading Standards Officer): No response 
received. 

4.1.7 The Safeguarding and Child Protection Unit: No response received. 

4.1.8 The Primary Care Trust: No response received. 

4.2 Any other persons: Nine (9) valid objections were received during the 28 day 
consultation period on the grounds of prevention of crime and disorder; Prevention of 
Public Nuisance; and protection of children from harm licensing objectives. Appendix 
8 and 9. 

4.3 A further submission of supporting evidence was made by one of the objectors after 
the consultation period had closed. Marked Appendix 10. 

5. Licensing Officer’s Observations: 

5.1 The Relevant Representations received raise the following issues: 

• Representations mention concerns regarding anti-social behaviour and 
drunkenness leading to an increase in crime within the area and making the area 
unsafe for children. As well as concerns regarding a potential increase in litter and 
noise nuisance as a result of the application being granted. 

• Some representations mention concerns regarding business competition and 
commercial need. However, it should be noted that these are not relevant 
considerations under the Licensing Act 2003. 

5.2 In addition to the Mandatory Conditions, the Licensing Sub-Committee should consider 
those conditions offered in the operating schedule and decide whether they are 
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives and address any valid 
representations made by Interested Parties. 

 

Page 12



6. Policy Considerations 

6.1 Regard must be had to the Council’s adopted Licensing Policy published February 2022 
when determining this application. Of particular relevance (but not limited to) the 
following: 

Anti-social behaviour 
2.36 Licensing is not the primary mechanism for controlling anti-social behaviour away 
from premises and beyond the direct control of operators. However, it is a key aspect 
of such control and licensing law is part of the holistic approach to the management of 
the evening and night time economy in town and city centres as well as rural areas and 
to some extent during the daytime too. Therefore, this Policy acknowledges the 
contribution of individual premises and, in certain circumstances, groups of premises 
to anti-social behaviour. 

Prevention of crime and disorder 
3.26  Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 places a legal duty on the Council 

to consider the reduction of crime and disorder, including the reduction of anti-
social behaviour, in all its activities. The Licensing Authority will look to the police 
as the main source of advice on crime and disorder matters and will also seek to 
involve the local Community Safety Partnership for advice on anti-social 
behaviour. 

3.27  Applicants are expected to demonstrate in their operating schedule how they 
intend to promote the crime prevention objective in relation to the licensable 
activities provided. Applicants should also consider local circumstances, for 
example such as the terminal hour of other licensed premises in close proximity, 
local crime and anti-social behaviour ‘hot spots’. 

3.32  In considering licence applications, where a relevant representation has been 
made, or if advice is sought from a potential applicant regarding the crime and 
disorder objective, the Licensing Authority will particularly consider the 
following: 

Responsible sale and supply of alcohol. It is expected that all premises licensed to sell 
and supply alcohol will have measures in place to prevent: 

• The sale and supply of alcohol to children 
• Serving alcohol to customers who are drunk 
• Permitting drunkenness on the premises 
• Encouraging irresponsible drinks promotions 
• Spiking of drinks 
• Anti-social street drinking in the local vicinity. 

The expected measures include written policies and procedures, documented staff 
training and refresher training, the use of refusal logs and incident reports and use of 
appropriate signage. 

Prevention of a public nuisance 

3.36 In considering all licence applications, the Licensing Authority will consider 
whether the measures proposed to deal with the potential for public nuisance 
having regard to all circumstances of the application, are adequate. Much weight 
will be placed on recommendations made by Environmental Health Officers in 
terms of preventing public nuisance. 

Page 13



3.37 Particular measures include: 

Litter. Measures should be in place to manage the risk of littering associated with 
the premises. This includes having sufficient waste receptacles to avoid 
overflowing refuse containers and litter sweeps in the immediate vicinity to clear 
cigarette butts, food receptacles and flyers associated with the premises. 
Sometimes problems arise about litter from takeaways and, to a limited extent, 
from off licences. Licensees should consider distinctive wrapping, packaging or 
bags, so that litter can be traced back to particular premises and also periodic 
litter collection patrols and the provision of additional bins. 
Street drinking. Street drinking can cause nuisance as well as crime and disorder. 
Where there is a history of public nuisance associated with street drinking in an 
area, the Licensing Authority may impose additional restrictions on licences for 
the sale of alcohol for consumption off the premises. Additional restrictions may 
include not selling high strength beer and cider, not selling cans and bottles in 
single cans and discouraging the sale of alcohol to known street drinkers. 
Off Licences and PSPO’s Considerations 
3.59 The street drinking of alcohol has found to be associated with crime and 
disorder and anti-social behaviour in certain areas of Buckinghamshire. Street 
drinking can also be associated with public nuisance. To help tackle the issue the 
Council has introduced PSPOs (Public Space Protection Orders) in some parks and 
town centres which prohibit drinking alcohol or possessing alcohol in open 
containers. 

3.60  Experience shows that enforcement of the PSPO alone is not sufficient to deter 
would be offenders from consuming alcohol in breach of current PSPOs. 
Enforcement is only part of the solution and it is important that locally licensed 
businesses also play their part. Not only does this demonstrate a commitment to 
the promotion of the licensing objectives, the removal of anti-social street 
drinking enhances the area and contributes to greater prosperity. 

 
3.61  To assist address, the problematic street drinking, premises licensed for the sale 

of alcohol for consumption off the premises in areas where relevant PSPOs have 
been introduced are expected to adopt the following measures: 

• No single cans or bottles of beer or cider will be sold. 
• No high strength beer or cider products with 7.5% ABV or higher will be sold. 
• Alcohol shall not be sold to any person who is reasonably expected to 

consume it on the street in the vicinity of the premises. 
• Alcohol shall not be sold to customers in an open container. 
• All alcohol sold from the premises will be marked in a way that can be used 

to identify that the alcohol has been purchased from the shop. 
• Staff training shall include training on awareness of local alcohol related 

issues of concern and the actions required by staff to avoid contributing to 
these concerns. 

• A log of refusals to sell alcohol shall be maintained at the premises and 
include a record of refusals of persons known to consume alcohol in breach 
of the local PSPO. 

6.2 Regard must also be had to the national Guidance issued by the Home Office under 
Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003, as amended. 

Page 14



Crime and disorder 

2.1  Licensing authorities should look to the police as the main source of advice on 
crime and disorder. 

2.3  Conditions should be targeted on deterrence and preventing crime and disorder 
including the prevention of illegal working in licensed premises. For example, 
where there is good reason to suppose that disorder may take place, the 
presence of closed-circuit television (CCTV) cameras both inside and immediately 
outside the premises can actively deter disorder, nuisance, anti- social behaviour 
and crime generally. 

Prevention of a public Nuisance 
 
2.21  The 2003 Act enables licensing authorities and responsible authorities, through 

representations, to consider what constitutes public nuisance and what is 
appropriate to prevent it in terms of conditions attached to specific premises 
licences and club premises certificates. It is therefore important that in considering 
the promotion of this licensing objective, licensing authorities and responsible 
authorities focus on the effect of the licensable activities at the specific premises on 
persons living and working (including those carrying on business) in the area around 
the premises which may be disproportionate and unreasonable. The issues will 
mainly concern noise nuisance, light pollution, noxious smells and litter. 

2.22  Public nuisance is given a statutory meaning in many pieces of legislation. It is 
however not narrowly defined in the 2003 Act and retains its broad common law 
meaning. It may include in appropriate circumstances the reduction of the living 
and working amenity and environment of other persons living and working in the 
area of the licensed premises. Public nuisance may also arise as a result of the 
adverse effects of artificial light, dust, odour and insects or where its effect is 
prejudicial to health. 

2.24 As with all conditions, those relating to noise nuisance may not be appropriate 
in certain circumstances where provisions in other legislation adequately protect 
those living in the area of the premises. But as stated earlier in this Guidance, the 
approach of licensing authorities and responsible authorities should be one of 
prevention and when their powers are engaged, licensing authorities should be 
aware of the fact that other legislation may not adequately cover concerns raised 
in relevant representations and additional conditions may be appropriate. 

2.27  Beyond the immediate area surrounding the premises, these are matters for the 
personal responsibility of individuals under the law. An individual who engages in 
anti-social behaviour is accountable in their own right. However, it would be 
perfectly reasonable for a licensing authority to impose a condition, following 
relevant representations, that requires the licence holder or club to place signs 
at the exits from the building encouraging patrons to be quiet until they leave 
the area, or that, if they wish to smoke, to do so at designated places on the 
premises instead of outside, and to respect the rights of people living nearby to 
a peaceful night. 

7. Links to Council Policy Objectives 

7.1 The Authority regards existing and future environmental qualities and character of the 
District to be important when consideration is given to granting licences for any 

Page 15



purpose. When considering licensing applications where relevant representations have 
been made, the Authority will consider its effect on the licensing objectives and in 
particular the effect the licence will have on the public nuisance objective. In order to 
consider these matters, it is necessary to consider the environment of the area in which 
the premises are or will be situated. 

8. Resources, Risk and Other Implications 

8.1 Resource: The only resource implications to date have been officer time however if 
the applicant or persons making relevant representations appeals against the 
decision of the Licensing Sub – Committee this would result in legal fees to defend 
the appeal and further costs. In the event of a successful appeal the Council may also 
have to pay the applicant/other party’s costs. 

8.2 Human Rights: The Licensing Sub-Committee's decision regarding this application will 
have Human Rights implications in respect of both the Applicant and the persons 
making relevant representations which also need to be considered equally and fairly 
so that the decision is proportionate and the right balance is met. The referral of this 
matter to the Sub-Committee is laid down in the Licensing Act 2003, as amended and 
is also in accordance with Article 6 of the Human Rights Act 1998, the right to a fair 
hearing, which is an absolute right. The Applicant and the persons making relevant 
representations have been notified of the Hearing and invited to make 
representations. A statutory right of appeal to the Magistrates Court and the right (if 
it arises) to challenge the Sub- Committee's decision by way of Judicial Review to the 
High Court also ensure a fair hearing to both the Applicant and the persons making 
relevant representations. 

8.3 Article 8 and Article 1 of the First Protocol - the right to respect for private/family life 
and peaceful enjoyment of property/possessions (including Licences) - also needs to 
be considered. The persons making relevant representations have a right to respect 
for their private and family life and their home. They are entitled not to be disturbed 
by unreasonable noise and/or nuisance. However, this is a qualified right and has to 
be balanced against the rights of others including the rights of businesses in the area 
to operate. 

8.4 Article 14 of the Human Rights Act 1998 - the right to freedom from discrimination 
(which is an absolute right) also needs to be considered. The human rights provided 
under the Human Rights Act 1998 must not be subject to discrimination under various 
headings, including race, national or social origins, association with a national 
minority group or other status. 

8.5 Interference with these rights is acceptable within the terms of the Human Rights Act 
1998 if it safeguards the rights of others, is legitimate, proportionate and balanced in 
that there is a need to find a fair balance between the protection of individual rights 
and the interests of the community at large – other than rights under Article 6 and 14 
which are absolute rights and can not be interfered with. 

8.6 Therefore if Members refuse to grant the application for a new Premises Licence in 
whole or part or grant it subject to conditions, this will be a breach of the rights of the 
Applicant unless such refusal (in full or part) is, and/or the conditions imposed are, 
appropriate, proportionate and can be justified, on balance, by being outweighed by 
the rights of the community at large to peaceful enjoyment of their 
property/possessions. Any restriction placed upon the Premises Licence must not go 

Page 16



beyond what is strictly necessary to achieve its legitimate purpose in order to mitigate 
the interference with the community at large’s enjoyment of their 
property/possessions. 

8.7 By taking into consideration all the material considerations relating to this application 
and balancing the interests/rights of all parties involved it is considered that the 
Licensing Sub-Committee’s decision will be both proportionate and justified having 
had regard to the Human Rights Act 1998. 

8.8 The Equality Act 2010, including the Council’s Public Sector Equality Duty, must be 
taken into account when making decisions in relation to licensing applications. 

9. Determination by the Licensing Sub-Committee 

9.1 The Sub Committee is obliged to determine applications in the light of the above and 
any other material considerations with a view to promoting the four licensing 
objectives. Which are: 

 The prevention of crime and disorder 
 Public safety 
 Prevention of public nuisance 
 Protection of children from harm 

Regard must also be had to the Council’s Licensing Policy, Home Office Guidance 
issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003, as amended, relevant 
representations received and the evidence presented at the Hearing. 

9.2 Each application must be considered on its own merits and any conditions attached 
to premises licences must be tailored to the individual style and characteristics of the 
premises and events concerned. This is essential to avoid the imposition of 
disproportionate and overly burdensome conditions on premises. Standardised 
conditions should be avoided and indeed may be unlawful where they cannot be 
shown to promote the licensing objectives in any individual case. 

9.3 The Sub-Committee must avoid duplication of other legal requirements and should 
only impose conditions on a premises licence which are appropriate and 
proportionate for the promotion of the licensing objectives and where additional 
and/or supplementary measures are required in order to promote the licensing 
objectives. 

9.4 The following options are available to the Licensing Sub Committee: 

9.4.1 Grant the Premises Licence - subject to any conditions which are consistent 
with the Operating Schedule and which are considered appropriate and 
proportionate for the promotion of the four licensing objectives in response 
to relevant representations received - and any relevant mandatory conditions. 

9.4.2 Exclude from the scope of the Premises Licence granted under Para 9.4.1 
above any of the licensable activities to which the application relates. 

9.4.3 Refuse to specify a person in the Premises Licence granted under Para 9.4.1 as 
the premises supervisor. 

9.4.4 Reject the whole of the Application. 

9.4.5 Grant the Premises Licence subject to different conditions for different parts 
of the premises or the different /reduced licensable activities if this is 

Page 17



considered appropriate and proportionate to promote the four licensing 
objectives and in response to the representations received). 

9.5 The Sub-Committee is asked to note that it may not reject the whole or part of the 
application or attach conditions - merely because it considers it desirable to do so. It 
must actually be appropriate and proportionate in order to promote the 4 licensing 
objectives and be in response to the representations received and full reasons must 
be given for the Sub-Committees decision. 

 
10. Conditions offered in the Operating Schedule 

General Licensing Objec�ves 

1. All staff responsible for selling alcohol shall receive regular training in the promo�on of 
the licensing objec�ves as are relevant to their du�es (including the Challenge 25 
scheme) This training will be documented to include the date the training was given, 
the name of the person who gave the training, the person who received the training 
and signatures by both trainer and trainee. The training shall be recorded in a training 
record which shall not be removed from the premises, except in case of emergency or 
for the purposes of copying, un�l a period of 12 months has expired since the last entry 
that has been recorded. The training record shall be made available to Police and 
authorised council officers on request. 

The preven�on of crime and disorder 

2. The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system which records 
24 hours a day. 

All entry and exit points will be covered enabling frontal iden�fica�on of every person 
entering in any light condi�on. 

All CCTV recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days and all recordings 
will be stamped with the correct date and �me.  

Viewing of recordings shall be made available, subject to Data Protec�on legisla�on, 
immediately upon the request of Police or an authorised council officer. 

3. Licensable ac�vi�es shall only be carried out at the premises at �mes when the CCTV 
system is fully opera�onal. 

4. A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the opera�on of the CCTV 
system shall always be on the premises at �mes when the premises is open. This staff 
member must be able to provide a Police or authorised council officer copies of recent 
CCTV images or data with the minimum of delay when requested. 

5. Appropriate signage will be displayed at the premises, in a prominent posi�on, 
informing customers that CCTV is in opera�on.  

6. An incident logbook will be maintained at the premises. It must be completed within 
24 hours of the incident and will record the following at a minimum: 

a. Any refusal of the sale of alcohol (entries must include the date and �me of the 
refused sale and the name of the member of staff who refused the sale) 

b. Any incidents of crime and disorder 
c. All ejec�ons of patrons 
d. Any faults in the CCTV system 

Page 18



The logbook shall be kept on the premises, for a minimum of one year from each entry, 
and be available for inspec�on, at all �mes the premises is open. Management shall 
regularly check the book to ensure all staff are using it. 

7. The Premises Licence Holder shall only buy tobacco and alcohol products from cash 
and carry wholesalers.  The cash and carry wholesalers providing alcohol will be 
registered with the Alcohol Wholesalers Registra�on Scheme (AWRS).  All receipts for 
purchases of alcohol and tobacco purchased in the preceding 12 months will be kept 
at the premises and be available for inspec�on upon request of an authorised officer 
so as to be able to iden�fy from where any items of alcohol or cigaretes were 
purchased. 

8.  All staff employed at the premises will have UK right to work status checked before 
being offered employment. The premises licence holder or nominated representa�ve 
shall keep and maintain copies of all right to work documents for all staff members at 
the premises and these be shall made available upon request to an authorised officer 
of the council and Thames Valley Police. 

Public Safety 

9. Fire exit signs shall be displayed at the premises. 

The preven�on of public nuisance 

10.  No�ces, at least A4 in size, will be prominently displayed at the premises asking 
customers to respect the needs of local residents and businesses and leave the area 
quietly. Staff will also encourage customers to be considerate to neighbours and limit 
noise when leaving the premises. 

The protec�on of children from harm 

11. A challenge 25 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises where the only 
acceptable forms of iden�fica�on are recognised photographic iden�fica�on cards, 
such as a driving licence, passport or proof of age card with the PASS Hologram.  

12. Signage shall be displayed at the premises advising customers that a Challenge 25 proof 
of age scheme is in place. 

 
 

Officer Contact: Stacey Bella (01296 585 336)  

stacey.bella@buckinghamshire.gov.uk  

 

Background Papers: Application Ref PR202401-339919 

Licensing Act 2003, as amended.  

Licensing Policy – As adopted March 2022.  

Home Office Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 
2003, as amended. 

 

Page 19

mailto:stacey.bella@buckinghamshire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



BUCKINGHAMSHIRE COUNCIL 

Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014, Section 60(2) 

Public Spaces Protection Order Extension 

A Public Spaces Protection Order was made by Buckinghamshire Council (“the Council”) on 31st 

October 2019 and may be cited as the Chiltern District Council (Alcohol Consumption) Public 

Spaces Protection Order 2019 (“the Order”). 

This Order was made by the Council under the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 

2014, Section 59 (“the Act”) and was for a duration of three years.   

A copy of the Order is annexed hereto. 

By a decision made by the Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member Health and Wellbeing, on behalf 

of the Leader of the Council dated 5th October 2022, and in accordance with the previously 

published schedule and reports, the Order is extended for a further three years commencing 10th 

October 2022 unless further extended under the provisions of section 60 of the Act. 

In making this decision and in accordance with section 60(2) of the Act, the Leader was satisfied 

on reasonable grounds that the extension was necessary to prevent 

a) Occurrence or re-occurrence after that time of the activities identified in the Order, or

b) An increase in the frequency or seriousness of those activities after that time.

Signed: 

Gideon Springer – Head of Community Safety Buckinghamshire Council 

Dated: 5th October 2022 

APPENDIX 1

Page 21

Appendix 



CHILTERN DISTRICT COUNCIL 
ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR, CRIME AND POLICING ACT 2014 

THE CHILTERN DISTRICT COUNCIL (ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION) 
PUBLIC SPACES PROTECTION ORDER 2019 

1. THIS ORDER is made by Chiltern District Council ("the Council") in exercise of its 
power under section 59 in Chapter 2 of Part 4 of the Anti-social Behaviour, Crime 
and Policing Act 2014 ("the Act") because it is satisfied on reasonable grounds, 
having carried out a consultation in accordance with section 72 of the Act and 
considered the matters set out therein, that: 

1.1 activities carried out, or likely to be carried out, in the public places set out in 
paragraph 2 below (which are within the Council's area) either have had a 
detrimental effect on the quality of life of those in the locality or will have 
such an effect; and 

1.2 the effect, or likely effect, of the activities -
a. is, or is likely to be, of a persistent or continuing nature, 
b. is, or is likely to be, such as to make the activities unreasonable, and 
c. justifies the restrictions imposed by this Order 

2. The public places within which the activities set out in paragraph 3 below are 
prohibited ("the Restricted Area") are respectively shown edged and hatched in 
red on the plans in the Appendix to this Order and comprise: 

• Chesham Cemetery, Berkhampstead Road, Chesham, Bucks, HPS 3ET 

• Chesham Town Centre: 
o Blucher Street, 
o The Broadway, 
o High Street, 
o Market Square, and 
o Meades Water Garden, Red Lion Road, 

• Amersham-on-the-Hill: 
o Chiltern Avenue 
o Hill Avenue 
o Oakfield Corner 
o Hervines Road 
o Hervines Park 
o Chesham Road from Oakfield Corner to junction with South Road 
o Chiltern Parade 
o Rickmansworth Road 
o Surface car park, Rickmansworth Road 
o Sycamore Road 
o Woodside Close 
o Woodside Road to junction with Green Lane 

Page 22



o King George's Field 
o King George V Road 
o Council Offices car park, King George V Road 
o Hyrons Lane 
o Darlington Close 
o Tylsworth Close 
o Access road to Tudor Court and Windsor Court, King George V 

Road 
o Multi-storey car park, Chiltern Avenue 

• Old Amersham: 
o Whielden Street to junction with Haleacre Hospital entrance 
o High Street to junction with Mill Lane 
o Mill Lane 
o School Lane from junction with Church Street to junction with Mill 

Lane 
o Barn Meadow Recreation Ground 
o Church Street 
o St Mary's Church graveyard 
o Church Mead 
o Garden of Remembrance 
o Market Square 
o The Broadway 
o Council surface car park, The Broadway 
o Footpath between Misbourne Court and Station Road 
o London Road West to junction with Stanley Hill 

• Land at Roundwood Road and Station Forecourt, Amersham 
o Amersham Station forecourt, Chiltern Avenue 
o White Lion Road from junction with Stanley Hill to The Pomeroy 

public house 
o Raans Road from junction with Woodside Road to junction with 

Quill Hall Lane 
o Brudenell Close including Drakes Court 
o Park Place 
o Plantation Road from junction with Park Place (south junction) 

and junction with Mitchell Walk 
o Roundwood Road 
o Playground, Roundwood Road 
o Wooded areas adjacent to and adjoining Roundwood Road 
o Grove Road 
o Eagle Close 
o Quill Hall Lane from junction with Eagle Close to Springett Place 
o Side road off Quill Hall Lane leading to Ridge House 
o Park Road 
o Land between Quill Hall Lane and Park Road 
o Deans Close 

Page 23



o Middle Close 
o Popes Close 

3. The activities which are to be prohibited are: 

3.1 the consumption of alcohol in breach of an authorised officer's request t< ceasei 

its consumption; and 
3.2 having an unsealed container of alcohol in breach of an authorised officl's 
request to surrender the alcohol or container. 

4. Therefore the following Restrictionsapply in the Restricted Area: 

A police constable, community support officer or person duly authorised by t~\ 
Council (each hereafter called an "authorised officer") shall be entitled tc' requir.e 
any person who is or has been consuming alcohol in the Restricted Area'. or 
intends to consume alcohol in the Restricted Area, to not consume in thr 

:, 

Restricted Area anything which is, or which an authorised officer reasonc1bly . 
believes to be, alcohol and to surrender anything in his or her possessio,1 whidl 
is, or which the authorised officer reasonably believes to be, alcohol or a 
container for alcohol. 

5. Period for which this Order Has Effect 

This Order will come into force on 31 October 2019 and will continue in force f4::ir 

three years expiring on 30 October 2022 

6. Consequences of Failure to Comply with Restrictions Contained in t~is 
Order 

It is an offence under section 63 of the Act for a person, without reasonable . 
excuse, to fail to comply with a requirement imposed on him or her ass/tout 1n 
paragraph 4 above and a person guilty of such an offence is liable on summary, 
conviction to a fine not exceeding level 2 on the standard scale. 

An authorised officer may issue a Fixed Penalty Notice to anyone that officer 
believes has committed an offence and provided that fixed penalty, in tHe sum of 
£100, is paid within 14 days, a prosecution will not be brought for that offence. 

7. Appeals 

Any challenge to the validity of this Order must be made in the High C01Jrt by \n 
interested person within six weeks of the Order being made. The right td' 
challenge also exists where an order is varied by the Council. An interest/d. 

• • d •• d I h 1· • I I k • • • th R ;trrctec,person Is an rn rvr ua w o Ives In, or regu ar y wor s rn or vIsIts, e e5 1 
thArea and they may only challenge the validity of the Order on two grounds; \t 

the Council did not have power to make the order or variation, or to incll1de 

Page 24



particular prohibitions or requirements imposed by it, or that a requirement 
under Chapter 2 of Part 4 of the Act was not complied with. 

Where a challenge is made the High Court can decide to suspend the operation 
of the Order, pending its decision, in part or in totality and the High Court has 
the power to uphold, quash or vary the Order. 

Dated: 31 October 2019 

~W\#\ 6~~Signed: 
a~-~~a Swift 

Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

On behalf of Chiltern District Council 
King George V House, King George V Road, Amersham, Buckinghamshire, 
HP6 SAW 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



0 0.025 0.050.0125 km

1:1,250

Appendix 2 - Location Plan New Hub & Off Licence

Date: 26/03/2024

Legend

© Copyright Buckinghamshire Council 
Licence No. 0100062456  2023

Author: Enter name

±
Copyright: 

APPENDIX 2

Page 27

Appendix 



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 3

Page 29

Appendix 



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

Entitlement to work/immigration status for individual applicants and applications from partnerships which are not 
limited liability partnerships:  
A licence may not be held by an individual or an individual in a partnership who is resident in the UK who:  

 • does not have the right to live and work in the UK; or  
 • is subject to a condition preventing him or her from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable 
 activity.  

Any premises licence issued in respect of an application made on or after 6 April 2017 will become invalid if the holder 
ceases to be entitled to work in the UK.  
Applicants must demonstrate that they have an entitlement to work in the UK and are not subject to a condition preventing 
them from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity. They do this in one of two ways: 1) by providing 
with this application copies or scanned copies of the documents listed below (which do not need to be certified), or 2) by 
providing their 'share code' to enable the licensing authority to carry out a check using the Home Office online right to work 
checking service (see below). 
Documents which demonstrate entitlement to work in the UK 

 • An expired or current passport showing the holder, or a person named in the passport as the child of the 
 holder, is A British citizen or a citizen of the UK and Colonies having the right of abode in the UK [please see 
 note below about which sections of the passport to copy].  

 • An expired or current passport or national identity card showing the holder, or a person named in the passport 
 as the child of the holder, is a national of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland.  

 • A Registration Certificate or document certifying permanent residence issued by the Home Office to a national 
 of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland.  
 • A Permanent Residence Card issued by the Home Office to the family member of a national of a European  
 Economic Area country or Switzerland.  

 • A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by the Home Office to the 
 holder indicating that the person named is allowed to stay indefinitely in the UK, or has no time limit on their  
 stay in the UK. 

 • A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is exempt from immigration control, is allowed to stay 
 indefinitely in the UK, has the right of abode in the UK, or has no time limit on their stay in the UK. 

• A current Immigration Status Document issued by the Home Office to the holder with an endorsement
 indicating that the named person is allowed to stay indefinitely in the UK or has no time limit on their stay in 
 the UK, when produced in combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National  
 Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.  

• A birth or adoption certificate issued in the UK, when produced in combination with an official document
 giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency 
 or a previous employer. 

• A birth or adoption certificate issued in the Channel Islands, the Isle of Man or Ireland when produced in 
 combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their  
 name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer. 

• A certificate of registration or naturalisation as a British citizen, when produced in combination with an
 official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their name issued by a  
 Government agency or a previous employer. 

Page 41



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

• A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is allowed to stay in the UK and is currently allowed to
 work and is not subject to a condition preventing the holder from doing work relating to the carrying on of a  
 licensable activity.  

• A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by the Home Office to the
 holder which indicates that the named person can currently stay in the UK and is allowed to work relation to  
 the carrying on of a licensable activity. 

• A current Residence Card issued by the Home Office to a person who is not a national of a European Economic 
 Area state or Switzerland but who is a family member of such a national or who has derivative rights or 
 residence. 

• A current Immigration Status Document containing a photograph issued by the Home Office to the holder 
 with an endorsement indicating that the named person may stay in the UK, and is allowed to work and is not  
 subject  to a condition preventing the holder from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity  
 when produced in combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance  
 number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer. 

• A Certificate of Application, less than 6 months old, issued by the Home Office under regulation 18(3) or 20(2)  
 of the Immigration (European Economic Area) Regulations 2016, to a  person who is not a national of a  
 European Economic Area  state or Switzerland but who is a family member of such a national or who has  
 derivative rights of residence.  

• Reasonable evidence that the person has an outstanding application to vary their permission to be in the UK 
 with the Home Office such as the Home Office acknowledgement letter or proof of postage evidence, or  
 reasonable evidence that the person has an appeal or administrative review pending on an immigration  
 decision, such as an appeal or administrative review reference number. 

• Reasonable evidence that a person who is not a national of a European Economic Area state or Switzerland but 
 who is a family member of such a national or who has derivative rights of residence in exercising treaty rights in 
 the UK including:-  

• evidence of the applicant’s own identity – such as a passport, 
• evidence of their relationship with the European Economic Area family member – e.g. a marriage 
 certificate, civil partnership certificate or birth certificate, and 
• evidence that the European Economic Area national has a right of permanent residence in the UK or is one 
 of the following if they have been in the UK for more than 3 months: 

(i) working e.g. employment contract, wage slips, letter from the employer, 
(ii) self-employed e.g. contracts, invoices, or audited accounts with a bank, 
(iii) studying e.g. letter from the school, college or university and evidence of sufficient funds; or 
(iv) self-sufficient e.g. bank statements. 

Family members of European Economic Area nationals who are studying or financially independent must also provide 
evidence that the European Economic Area national and any family members hold comprehensive sickness insurance in the 
UK. This can include a private medical insurance policy, an EHIC card or an S1, S2 or S3 form. 
Original documents must not be sent to licensing authorities. If the document copied is a passport, a copy of the 
following pages should be provided:- 
(i) any page containing the holder’s personal details including nationality; 
(ii) any page containing the holder’s photograph; 
(iii) any page containing the holder’s signature; 
(iv) any page containing the date of expiry; and 
(v) any page containing information indicating the holder has permission to enter or remain in the UK and is permitted to 
work.  
 

Page 42



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

If the document is not a passport, a copy of the whole document should be provided. 
Your right to work will be checked as part of your licensing application and this could involve us checking your immigration 
status with the Home Office. We may otherwise share information with the Home Office. Your licence application will not be 
determined until you have complied with this guidance.  
  
 Home Office online right to work checking service 
  
As an alternative to providing a copy of the documents listed above, applicants may demonstrate their right to work by 
allowing the licensing authority to carry out a check with the Home Office online right to work checking service.  
  
To demonstrate their right to work via the Home Office online right to work checking service, applicants should include in 
this application their 9-digit share code (provided to them upon accessing the service at https://www.gov.uk/prove-right-
to-work) which, along with the applicant's date of birth (provided within this application), will allow the licensing authority 
to carry out the check.  
  
In order to establish the applicant's right to work, the check will need to indicate that the applicant is allowed to work in the 
United Kingdom and is not subject to a condition preventing them from doing work relating to the carrying on of a 
licensable activity. 
  
An online check will not be possible in all circumstances because not all applicants will have an immigration status that can 
be checked online. The Home Office online right to work checking service sets out what information and/or documentation 
applicants will need in order to access the service. Applicants who are unable to obtain a share code from the service 
should submit copy documents as set out above.  
 

Section 20 of 21

NOTES ON REGULATED ENTERTAINMENT

Page 43



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

In terms of specific regulated entertainments please note that:  

• Plays: no licence is required for performances between 08:00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience 
 does not exceed 500. 

• Films: no licence is required for ‘not-for-profit’ film exhibition held in community premises  between 08.00 and 
 23.00 on any day provided that the audience does not exceed 500 and the organiser (a) gets consent to the  
 screening from a person who is responsible for the premises; and (b) ensures that each such screening abides  
 by age classification ratings. 

• Indoor sporting events: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided 
 that the audience does not exceed 1000.     

• Boxing or Wrestling Entertainment:  no licence is required for a contest, exhibition or display of Greco-Roman 
 wrestling, or freestyle wrestling between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not  
 exceed 1000. Combined fighting sports – defined as a contest, exhibition or display which combines boxing or  
 wrestling with one or more martial arts – are licensable as a boxing or wrestling entertainment rather than an  
 indoor sporting event. 

• Live music: no licence permission is required for:
o a performance of unamplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, on any premises. 
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell  
 alcohol for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500. 
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a workplace that is not  
 licensed to sell alcohol on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.  
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village hall,  
 community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell  
 alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the  
 performance from a person who is responsible for the premises. 
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential premises 
 of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500,  
 and (b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i) the local  
 authority concerned, or (ii) the school or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital. 

• Recorded Music: no licence permission is required for:
o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell alcohol  
 for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500. 
o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village hall,  
 community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell  
 alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the  
 performance from a person who is responsible for the premises. 
o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential premises of (i) a  
 local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) 
 the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i) the local authority  
 concerned, or (ii) the school proprietor or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital. 

Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



APPENDIX 4

Page 47

Appendix 



This page is intentionally left blank



From: Hooper, Trevor (C5686)
To: Licensing Mailbox
Subject: [EXTERNAL] TVP Application Response - Premises Licence for New Hub & Off Licence, 25A High street, Chesham.: NO

OBJECTION
Date: 07 February 2024 07:38:09

On 31/01/2024, we received a Premises Licence application relating to New Hub & Off Licence, 25A
High street, Chesham.

============================================ 
New convenyance store and Off licence. 
============================================

Based on the supplied information, the Thames Valley Police response is: *** NO OBJECTION ***

*********************************************************************************
This email contains information which is confidential and may also be privileged. It is for the
exclusive use of the addressee(s) and any views or opinions expressed within are those of the
originator and not necessarily those of the Force. If you are not the intended recipient(s) please note
that any form of distribution, copying or use of this email or the information contained is strictly
prohibited and may be unlawful. If you have received this communication in error please forward a
copy to informationsecurity@thamesvalley.police.uk and to the sender. Please then delete the email
and destroy any copies of it. DO NOT use this email address for other enquiries as it will not be
responded to, nor any action taken upon it. If you have a non-urgent enquiry, please call the Police
non-emergency number 101. If it is an emergency, please call 999. Thank you. 
*********************************************************************************

APPENDIX 5

Page 49

Appendix 

mailto:trevor.hooper@thamesvalley.police.uk
mailto:Licensing@buckinghamshire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



BUCKINGHAMSHIRE COUNCIL 

MEMO 

To: Licensing Services  From: 
Catriona Crelling 

 Tel Ext: 5875 

 Date 16.02.2024 

Ref: PR202401-339919  Ref: PR202401-339919

Application for a New Premises Licence 
New Hub & Off Licence, 25A HIGH STREET, CHESHAM, HP5 1BG 

I have reviewed this application and can confirm that having taken into consideration the 

promotion of the four licensing objectives, the Buckinghamshire Council Statement of 

Licensing Policy and the Secretary of State Section 182 Guidance the Licensing Authority 

have no objections. 

Yours sincerely 

Catriona Crelling 
Senior Licensing Officer 

APPENDIX 6

Page 51

Appendix 



This page is intentionally left blank



Form FSD025 

THE LICENSING ACT 2003 SECTION 5(3) CONSULTATION 

LICENSING REFERENCE 

NO: 

NOT CURRENTLY 

IN USE 
FOR ATTN: LICENSING 

PLANS NO: 

DATE RECEIVED: 30/01/2024 

PREMISES ADDRESS 
NEW HUB & OFF LICENCE 25A HIGH STREET 
CHESHAM HP5 1BG 

OUR REF. (FILE NO). C1604A FSEC Cat. L 

SECTION A – THIS AUTHORITY DOES NOT WISH TO MAKE “RELEVANT 

REPRESENTATION” UNDER THE FOLLOWING SECTION OF THE ABOVE ACT 

Application for a premises licence under section 17 

Application for a premises licence under section 18(6) and 18(6)b 

Variation of a premises licence under section 34 and or section 35(5) or 
36(6) 

Application for a club premises certificate under section 72(3) 

Application for variation of a club premises certificate under section 85(3) 

THE GROUNDS FOR “RELEVANT REPRESENTATION” ARE: - 

NO REPRESENTATION 
NOTES_________________________________________________________ 

A fire risk assessment must be completed by the Responsible Person in accordance with 
the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 

Signature and Role of officer: CMoore 

Carrie-Anne Moore  

Business Fire Safety Inspector 

Date: 02/02/2024 

Correspondence address:   Buckinghamshire Fire & Rescue Service 
Headquarters, Stocklake 

Aylesbury 
Bucks HP201BD 

Telephone Numbers Office: 01296 744417 Mobile: 07771973739 

Email address: cmoore@bucksfire.gov.uk 

APPENDIX 7

Page 53

Appendix 



This page is intentionally left blank



Web comments: 

1. Received: 16/02/2024

Name: Valerie Quinnell

The location of an off-license (& vape shop) so close to a children's nursery is inappropriate.

Chesham High Street has previously had public nuisance issues with anti-social behaviour

from youths congregating near Sainsbury's. The presence of an off-license (in a pedestrianised

area) which is open from 8am-11pm 7 days a week will create an environment which is likely

to cause public nuisance for local residents. Also the long licensing hours are very likely to

increase the cumulative stress of noise or nuisance for local residents. With a pre-existing off-

licence a few hundred meters away (8 Red Lion St, Chesham HP5 1HF) & two licensed bars

(Trekkers & Mad Squirrel) in VERY close proximity the presence of another off-licence at this

end of the High Street will result in the area being saturated with alcohol retail businesses

which will undermine the councils Licensing Objectives (particularly the prevention of public

nuisance & the prevention of crime & disorder).

2. Received: 19/02/2024

Name: Rob Tokoholic

We already have enough off-license and pubs in the area and could use charity shops like

british heart foundation and hardware stores as there are none left on street. Any more of

these shops would ruin our area and could put children at risk too. Strongly against this

application.

3. Received: 19/02/2024

Name: Wiktoria Turlay

Its way too close to my kids school. I would rather not have my kids walk out of school to a

shop that sells vapes and alcohol. there is already concern and government stance on banning

vape products for children such shops should not be opening so easily.

4. Received: 19/02/2024

Name: Mark Gordon

Why is there still application being considered. There is already an off-license within 3 mins

walk from this location barely 100 meters away and a pub as well. Letting more of same

business is not good for either the businesses or the public especially children. Bad

competition could lead to alcohol, vapes and cigarettes into hands of young people.

5. Received: 19/02/2024

Name: Jill

Hello its already too many pubs in high street. we saw a lot peoples leave empty cans and

glass bottles in our street. please no more off licence.

APPENDIX 8

Page 55

Appendix 



6. Received: 20/02/2024 

Name: Georgina Daw 

 

Not in support of another convenience store in the area. Too much litter already thanks to the 

ones already there and drunks from pubs are nuisance enough. Already so many shops selling 

alcohol down the square we don’t want the whole market turn into a black market where 

children would get easy access to vapes and other harmful products. Licensed and off-license 

premises should be at some distance from each other to avoid bad competition resulting in 

harm to community especially minors. 

 

7. Received: 23/02/2024 

Name: Amanda Hornsby Bond 

 

I am writing to object to the alcohol license. I don't see any good coming from this and only 

more problems re litter and noise. I believe the cumulative impact policy needs to be upheld 

for the good of the area. Please bring the policy into effect and take appropriate measures. 

 

8. Received: 23/02/2024 

Name: Hazel Hopkinson 

 

Dear Sirs, I am writing with objection to the application for opening another Convenience and 

Off Licence, Mobile and Vape Store. Our High Street already has at least 6 establishments 

which have all of these categories serving our community, some better than others. There are 

also plenty on the periphery of the High Street as well. We are slowly seeing our lovely High 

Street turn into a very cheap & tacky area. A lot of our independent traders (myself being one 

of them) have worked very hard to turn Chesham into a destination town. But, I can only see 

this being rapidly undone. Particularly if Poundland occupies the M&Co building. This will not 

continue to attract the Londoners who have started to live in our town. This convenience shop 

is in a Pedestrian Zone, so I am concerned how this will create an increase in illegal vehicular 

traffic along the High Street. I note with interest in the application that there is a section 

covering the ?Prevention of public nuisance as well as crime/disorder?. How many people are 

going to be told to be quiet when they leave this establishment? In the application it states 

that Alcohol will be sold on Sunday from 8am. I understood that alcohol ca not be sold until 

10am on Sundays? Can this be checked. Yours hopeful Mrs Hazel Hopkinson  

Page 56



From: g singh
To: Licensing Mailbox
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Objecting application no.PR202401-339919
Date: 21 February 2024 15:23:22

You don't often get email from mrsinghhp5@gmail.com. Learn why this is important

Dear sirs,

I have noticed an application for a new off-license planned to be opened at :
25A HIGH STREET, CHESHAM, HP5 1BG.

Application no. PR202401-339919

I would like to point out that granting a licence for these premises will not promote the
licensing objectives, particularly the prevention of crime, disorder and antisocial
behaviour.

The application proposes that alcohol will be sold for consumption off the premises
between 8:00am and 11.00pm, seven days a week. Granting a licence would provide a
further source of alcohol within an area already so heavily populated with licensed
premises that crime, disorder and public nuisance have already reached problem levels for
the local police.

There are 4 pubs
Red lion 
Trekkers bar
The drawing room
The george
And other Alcohol shops

There is already many drunks people walking the street at night and late night swearing
and shouting. As such residents in this area already suffer noise nuisance and antisocial
behaviour. It is totally unacceptable to escalate the situation.

There are also many cracked bottles cracked left on street which pose a significant
threat.Also some people also end up vomiting near the residences causing hygiene issue.

Considering there are elder vulnerable people and young children who often use the high
stree. Too many alcohol shops makes the place attractive to drunkards and druggies, that
can increase crimes against the aforementioned.

Hence, I would urge the Licensing Authority to refuse the application.

Yours kindly

Gurmeet Singh
8 red lion street
Chesham
HP51HF

APPENDIX 9

Page 57

Appendix 

mailto:mrsinghhp5@gmail.com
mailto:Licensing@buckinghamshire.gov.uk
https://aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderIdentification


This page is intentionally left blank



From: g singh
To: Stacey Bella
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Re: Notice of Hearing - New Hub & Off Licence, 25a High Street, Chesham, HP5 1BG
Date: 21 March 2024 10:20:43
Attachments: AlcoholOutletsAffectViolence.pdf

[Please note this has been sent from an external source - treat with caution and do not open
attachments / use links until you are sure this is a trusted communication see intranet/IT for
advice.]

Hello,

I have attached below the reports from PIRE prevention research centre and general impact review
carried regarding the effects that many alcohol shops in close proximity to each other have on public and
health services.

I have provided photos as evidence of current state of area to provide an insight into how it will worsen
the situation with more off-licenses being allowed to pop-up in close proximity.

There is a day care  few doors away from purposed premises.

Two alleys where cases of vomiting and pissing have recently been noticed at nights nearby proposed
premises.

Cans of alcohol disposed of incorrectly with one dented can that was full which could have fallen into
young hands. Also glass bottles are dumped into streets. 

On Thu, Mar 14, 2024, 14:49 Stacey Bella <Stacey.Bella@buckinghamshire.gov.uk> wrote:

Dear Sir/Madam,

Please find attached the notice of hearing for the above premises, along with a copy of the procedural
rules.

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions.

Kind Regards,

Stacey Bella

Licensing Officer

Commercial Licensing

Directorate for Communities

Buckinghamshire Council

01296 585336 or 01296 585605

Stacey.bella@buckinghamshire.gov.uk or licensing@buckinghamshire.gov.uk

APPENDIX 10

Page 59

Appendix 

mailto:mrsinghhp5@gmail.com
mailto:Stacey.Bella@buckinghamshire.gov.uk
mailto:Stacey.Bella@buckinghamshire.gov.uk
mailto:Stacey.bella@buckinghamshire.gov.uk
mailto:licensing@buckinghamshire.gov.uk



 


Pacific Institute for Research and Evaluation is one 
of the nation's preeminent independent, nonprofit 
organizations merging scientific knowledge and 


proven practice to create solutions that improve the 
health, safety and well-being of individuals, 


communities, nations, and the world. 
 


Translating Science into Practice 


How Alcohol Outlets Affect 
Neighborhood Violence 


Kathryn Stewart 
 


 
 


 
 


www.resources.prev.org 
 



http://www.resources.prev.org/





 
How Alcohol Outlets Affect Neighborhood Violence 
 
 
 


 
 


Page 2 of 7 


Introduction 


Neighborhoods where bars, restaurants and liquor and other stores that sell alcohol are close together 


suffer more frequent incidences of violence and other alcohol-related problems, according to research by 


the Prevention Research Center and others. The strong connection between alcohol and violence has been 


clear for a long time – but now we know that this connection also relates to the location of places that sell 


alcohol.   


Government agencies with authority over land-use and/or liquor licenses can help fight crime and blight 


and improve quality of life by controlling licenses to sell alcohol and the location of licensees. 


Governments can make rules that set minimum distances between alcohol outlets; they can limit new 


licenses for areas that already have outlets too close together; they can stop issuing licenses when a 


particular location goes out of business; and they can permanently close outlets that repeatedly violate 


liquor laws.   


This paper presents some of the questions and answers about alcohol sales outlets and alcohol problems – 


especially the relationship between outlet location and violence. 


What is the relationship between outlet density and violence? 


A number of studies have found that in and near neighborhoods where there is a high density of places 


that sell alcohol, there is a higher rate of violence. That is, when bars, liquor stores, and other businesses 


that sell alcohol are close together, more assaults and other violent crimes occur.   


Some of the important findings about outlet density and violence are described below. 


• In a study of college campuses across the U.S., the density of both on-premise outlets (such as 


bars) and off-premise alcohol-outlet (such as liquor stores) were associated with the campus rape 


and assault rates.1 


• Greater numbers of off-premise outlets such as liquor stores or grocery and convenience stores that sell 


alcohol were associated with greater injuries from accidents, assaults, and traffic crashes for both underage 


and of-age young adults. Among of-age young adults greater number of restaurants related to traffic crash 


injuries and greater numbers of bars related to assault injuries. Underage youth are more affected by off-


premises establishments like liquor and grocery stores.2 







 
How Alcohol Outlets Affect Neighborhood Violence 
 
 
 


 
 


Page 3 of 7 


• Alcohol outlet density, especially the density of liquor stores, was found to be associated 


significantly with rates of domestic violence, including violence against intimate partners and 


child abuse and neglect.345 


• .In a study of Camden, New Jersey, neighborhoods with alcohol outlet density had more violent 


crime (including homicide, rape, assault, and robbery).  This association was strong even when 


other neighborhood characteristics such as poverty and age of residents were taken into account.6  


• In a six-year study of changes in numbers of alcohol outlets in 551 urban and rural zip code areas 


in California, an increase in the number of bars and off-premise places (e.g., liquor, convenience 


and grocery stores) was related to an increase in the rate of violence.  These effects were largest 


in poor, minority areas of the state, those areas already saturated with the greatest numbers of 


outlets.78   


• Violence committed by youth was more common in minority neighborhoods where there are 


many outlets that sell alcohol for consumption off the premises (such as liquor and convenience 


stores).9   This finding makes sense because underage drinkers are more likely to purchase 


alcohol in a store than in a bar or restaurant.   


A larger number of alcohol outlets and a higher rate of violence might be expected in poorer 


neighborhoods or in neighborhoods with a larger population young people.  But as the research described 


above shows, even when levels of poverty and the age and the ethnic background of residents are taken 


into account, a high density of outlets is strongly related to violence regardless of a neighborhood’s 


economic, ethnic or age status.  


All of the characteristics of alcohol outlet location can be important.  It is easy to see that a town with 


many bars, restaurants, and stores that sell alcohol could be different from one that has fewer outlets.  It is 


also easy to see that a neighborhood that has a bar on each corner and a liquor store on each block has a 


completely different environment than one that has few outlets or none at all.  Other characteristics of the 


environment make a difference, too.  For example, a strip of bars near a college campus presents a 


different environment from a similar density of bars in an upscale city center and also different from a 


similar density in a poor neighborhood.  But in each case, some form of increased violence would be 


expected as compared to comparable areas with fewer alcohol outlets.  A study of changes in outlet 


density over time as related to violence in California found that regardless of other neighborhood 


characteristics, an increase in outlets increased violence.  In neighborhoods with a high minority 







 
How Alcohol Outlets Affect Neighborhood Violence 
 
 
 


 
 


Page 4 of 7 


population and low incomes, the effect was more than four times greater than for the statewide sample of 


communities.10 


What accounts for the relationship between outlet density and violence? 


The research that has been done so far cannot pinpoint exactly why having more outlets in a small area 


seems to result in more violence.  Various explanations have been proposed.  One is that alcohol outlets 


can be a source of social disorder.  A liquor store parking lot full of people drinking in their cars or on the 


curb and broken bottles littering the area outside a bar may send a message that this is a neighborhood in 


which normal rules about orderly behavior are not enforced.  Another possible explanation is that a 


neighborhood with a large number of outlets acts as a magnet for people who are more inclined to be 


violent or more vulnerable to being assaulted.  It is also possible that a high number of outlets results in a 


large number of people under the influence of alcohol – which makes them both more likely to be violent 


and less able to defend themselves.11   It is most probable that all of these factors come into play. 


What is the relationship of outlet density to other alcohol problems? 


The density of alcohol outlets has also been found to be related to other alcohol problems such as drinking 


and driving, higher rates of motor vehicle-related pedestrian injuries, and child abuse and neglect.1213     


How do governments regulate outlet density?  


States and communities can regulate the number of bars, restaurants, and stores that sell alcohol in a given 


area.  Sometimes the number and location of alcohol outlets is not limited at all.  In some jurisdictions, 


the number of alcohol outlets is limited based on the population of the area – only so many outlets per 


thousand residents, for example.  In other cases, the location of outlets is regulated – for example, some 


states or communities set minimum distances from schools or churches.  Research increasingly finds, 


however, that geographic density is the key aspect of outlet location – that is, the distance between 


outlets.  Where over-concentrations of outlets occur, greater problems arise. 


Governments can use their regulatory powers to reduce violence by: 


• Making rules that set minimum distances between alcohol outlets;  


• Limiting new licenses for areas that already have outlets too close together;  







 
How Alcohol Outlets Affect Neighborhood Violence 
 
 
 


 
 


Page 5 of 7 


• Not issuing a new license when a particular location goes out of business;  


• Permanently closing outlets that repeatedly violate liquor laws (such as by selling alcohol to 


minors or to intoxicated persons or allowing illicit drug sales or prostitution on the premises). 


What implications do these findings have for state and local licensing policies? 


The research strongly suggests that limits on outlet density may be an effective means of reducing alcohol 


problems, especially violence.  States and communities can use controls on the number and location of 


alcohol outlets as a tool for reducing violence, creating a safer and healthier alcohol environment, and 


improving the quality of life of a community. 


What other alcohol policies are important? 


Alcohol is a legal and widely consumed commodity; but it is also a commodity that can create a variety of 


serious health and social problems.  Alcohol policies are an important tool for preventing these problems.  


Every day, states and communities make decisions about the sale of alcohol: who can sell it, when and 


where it can be sold, who it can be sold to.  State and local laws and policies control many aspects of the 


system by which alcohol is manufactured, marketed, sold, purchased, and consumed.  


Regulations serve a variety of purposes, for example, they help ensure that tax revenues are collected.  


But the regulation of the business of selling alcohol goes beyond economic concerns.  Each element of the 


regulatory system provides opportunities for creating a healthier social environment with respect to 


alcohol.  For example, regulations can prevent unsafe sales practices – such as prohibiting all-you-can-


drink specials that encourage intoxication.  Regulations can control advertising and promotion that 


appeals to minors and establish the minimum age and training qualifications for people who sell and serve 


alcohol.  Each type of regulation has the potential to ensure that alcohol is consumed in a safe and healthy 


manner. 


What aspects of alcohol availability can be regulated? 


The regulation of alcohol sales can have an impact on the availability of alcohol – that is, how easy and 


convenient it is to buy.  Some states and communities try to make alcohol less available by selling it only 


in limited places – for example, state liquor stores.  Other communities sell it more freely – making it 


available in grocery stores, convenience stores, gas stations, laundromats, drive-through windows, and so 


forth.  States and communities can also limit the hours and days of sale, and other aspects of the 







 
How Alcohol Outlets Affect Neighborhood Violence 
 
 
 


 
 


Page 6 of 7 


conditions of sale.  The regulation of availability is important because research generally shows that when 


alcohol is more easily available, people drink more and more alcohol problems occur. 







 
How Alcohol Outlets Affect Neighborhood Violence 
 
 
 


 
 


Page 7 of 7 


References 


 
1 Scribner RA, Mason KE, Simonsen NR, Theall K, Chotalia J, Johnson S, Schneider SK, DeJong W (2010)., An 
ecological analysis of alcohol-outlet density and campus-reported violence at 32 U.S. colleges,  J Stud Alcohol 
Drugs; 71(2): 184-91 
2 Gruenewald, P.J.; Freisthler, B.; Remer, L.; LaScala, E.A.; Treno, A.J.; and Ponicki, W.R. "Ecological associations 
of alcohol outlets with underage and young adult injuries," Alcoholism: Clinical & Experimental Research, 
34(3):519-527, 2010. 
3 Livingston, M. A longitudinal analysis of alcohol outlet density and domestic violence (2011), Addiction, Volume 
106, Issue 5, pages 919–925. 
4 Cunradi, C.B. "Neighborhoods, alcohol outlets and intimate partner violence: Addressing research gaps in 
explanatory mechanisms," International Journal of Environmental Research and Public Health, 7:799-813, 2010. 
5Freisthler, B. "Alcohol use, drinking venue utilization, and child physical abuse: Results from a pilot study," 
Journal of Family Violence, September 29, 2010.  
6 Gorman. D., Speer. P., Gruenewald, P., and Labouvie, E. (2001) Journal of Studies on Alcohol, 62: 628-636. 
7 Gruenewald, P.J. and Remer, L. "Changes in outlet densities affect violence rates," Alcoholism: Clinical and 
Experimental Research, 30(7):1184-1193, July 2006. 
8 Gruenewald, P.J. and Remer, L.  Changes in outlet densities affect violence rates.  In review, Alcoholism: Clinical 
and Experimental Research, 2004. 
9 Alaniz, M.,  Cartmill, R.,  and Parker, R. (1998) Immigrants and violence, Hispanic Journal of Behavioral 
Sciences, 20, 155-174. 
10 Gruenewald, P.J. and Remer, L. "Changes in outlet densities affect violence rates," Alcoholism: Clinical and 
Experimental Research, 30(7):1184-1193, July 2006. 
11 Gorman, et al. (2001). 
12 Freisthler, B., Midanik, L.T. and Gruenewald, P.J.  Alcohol outlets and child physical abuse and neglect: 
Applying routine activities theory to the study of child maltreatment.  Journal of Studies on Alcohol, 65, 586-592, 
2004. 
13 Stockwell, T. and Gruenewald. P. (2001) Controls on Physical Availability of Alcohol, in Heather, N., Peters. T., 
and Stockwell, T. (eds.), International Handbook of Alcohol Dependence and Problems,  John Wiley and Sons, Ltd. 



http://www.safetylit.org/week/journalpage.php?jid=8396

http://www.safetylit.org/week/journalpage.php?jid=8396

http://onlinelibrary.wiley.com/doi/10.1111/j.1360-0443.2010.03333.x/abstract

http://onlinelibrary.wiley.com/doi/10.1111/add.2011.106.issue-5/issuetoc

http://onlinelibrary.wiley.com/doi/10.1111/add.2011.106.issue-5/issuetoc



		Introduction

		What is the relationship between outlet density and violence?

		What accounts for the relationship between outlet density and violence?

		What is the relationship of outlet density to other alcohol problems?

		How do governments regulate outlet density?

		What implications do these findings have for state and local licensing policies?

		What other alcohol policies are important?

		What aspects of alcohol availability can be regulated?

		References





The Gateway, Gatehouse Road, Aylesbury, Bucks, HP19 8FF

 

DISCLAIMER FOR BUCKINGHAMSHIRE COUNCIL

Any views expressed in this email are those of the individual sender and are not necessarily
those of Buckinghamshire Council unless explicitly stated.

This email and any attachments may contain confidential or privileged information and is
intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom it is addressed. Any
confidential, sensitive or protectively marked material must be handled accordingly.

If you are not the intended recipient you must not disclose, distribute, copy, print or rely on
any of the information contained in the email or attachments, and all copies must be deleted
immediately. If you do receive this email in error please notify the sender immediately and
note that confidentiality or privilege is not waived or lost. 

Buckinghamshire Council may monitor the contents of emails sent and received via its
network for the purposes of ensuring compliance with relevant legislation and the Council’s
policies and procedures. All such monitoring will take place in accordance with relevant
legislation including privacy and data protection legislation. For details of how
Buckinghamshire Council uses personal information please see the Council’s website.

Buckinghamshire Council has scanned this email and attachments for viruses but does not
accept any responsibilities for viruses once this email has been transmitted. You should
therefore carry out your own anti-virus checks before opening any documents.

Page 60

https://www.buckinghamshire.gov.uk/care-children-and-families/fostering/


P
age 61



P
age 62



Page 63



 

Pacific Institute for Research and Evaluation is one 
of the nation's preeminent independent, nonprofit 
organizations merging scientific knowledge and 

proven practice to create solutions that improve the 
health, safety and well-being of individuals, 

communities, nations, and the world. 
 

Translating Science into Practice 

How Alcohol Outlets Affect 
Neighborhood Violence 

Kathryn Stewart 
 

 
 

 
 

www.resources.prev.org 
 

Page 64

http://www.resources.prev.org/


 
How Alcohol Outlets Affect Neighborhood Violence 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 2 of 7 

Introduction 

Neighborhoods where bars, restaurants and liquor and other stores that sell alcohol are close together 

suffer more frequent incidences of violence and other alcohol-related problems, according to research by 

the Prevention Research Center and others. The strong connection between alcohol and violence has been 

clear for a long time – but now we know that this connection also relates to the location of places that sell 

alcohol.   

Government agencies with authority over land-use and/or liquor licenses can help fight crime and blight 

and improve quality of life by controlling licenses to sell alcohol and the location of licensees. 

Governments can make rules that set minimum distances between alcohol outlets; they can limit new 

licenses for areas that already have outlets too close together; they can stop issuing licenses when a 

particular location goes out of business; and they can permanently close outlets that repeatedly violate 

liquor laws.   

This paper presents some of the questions and answers about alcohol sales outlets and alcohol problems – 

especially the relationship between outlet location and violence. 

What is the relationship between outlet density and violence? 

A number of studies have found that in and near neighborhoods where there is a high density of places 

that sell alcohol, there is a higher rate of violence. That is, when bars, liquor stores, and other businesses 

that sell alcohol are close together, more assaults and other violent crimes occur.   

Some of the important findings about outlet density and violence are described below. 

• In a study of college campuses across the U.S., the density of both on-premise outlets (such as 

bars) and off-premise alcohol-outlet (such as liquor stores) were associated with the campus rape 

and assault rates.1 

• Greater numbers of off-premise outlets such as liquor stores or grocery and convenience stores that sell 

alcohol were associated with greater injuries from accidents, assaults, and traffic crashes for both underage 

and of-age young adults. Among of-age young adults greater number of restaurants related to traffic crash 

injuries and greater numbers of bars related to assault injuries. Underage youth are more affected by off-

premises establishments like liquor and grocery stores.2 

Page 65



 
How Alcohol Outlets Affect Neighborhood Violence 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 3 of 7 

• Alcohol outlet density, especially the density of liquor stores, was found to be associated 

significantly with rates of domestic violence, including violence against intimate partners and 

child abuse and neglect.345 

• .In a study of Camden, New Jersey, neighborhoods with alcohol outlet density had more violent 

crime (including homicide, rape, assault, and robbery).  This association was strong even when 

other neighborhood characteristics such as poverty and age of residents were taken into account.6  

• In a six-year study of changes in numbers of alcohol outlets in 551 urban and rural zip code areas 

in California, an increase in the number of bars and off-premise places (e.g., liquor, convenience 

and grocery stores) was related to an increase in the rate of violence.  These effects were largest 

in poor, minority areas of the state, those areas already saturated with the greatest numbers of 

outlets.78   

• Violence committed by youth was more common in minority neighborhoods where there are 

many outlets that sell alcohol for consumption off the premises (such as liquor and convenience 

stores).9   This finding makes sense because underage drinkers are more likely to purchase 

alcohol in a store than in a bar or restaurant.   

A larger number of alcohol outlets and a higher rate of violence might be expected in poorer 

neighborhoods or in neighborhoods with a larger population young people.  But as the research described 

above shows, even when levels of poverty and the age and the ethnic background of residents are taken 

into account, a high density of outlets is strongly related to violence regardless of a neighborhood’s 

economic, ethnic or age status.  

All of the characteristics of alcohol outlet location can be important.  It is easy to see that a town with 

many bars, restaurants, and stores that sell alcohol could be different from one that has fewer outlets.  It is 

also easy to see that a neighborhood that has a bar on each corner and a liquor store on each block has a 

completely different environment than one that has few outlets or none at all.  Other characteristics of the 

environment make a difference, too.  For example, a strip of bars near a college campus presents a 

different environment from a similar density of bars in an upscale city center and also different from a 

similar density in a poor neighborhood.  But in each case, some form of increased violence would be 

expected as compared to comparable areas with fewer alcohol outlets.  A study of changes in outlet 

density over time as related to violence in California found that regardless of other neighborhood 

characteristics, an increase in outlets increased violence.  In neighborhoods with a high minority 

Page 66



 
How Alcohol Outlets Affect Neighborhood Violence 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 4 of 7 

population and low incomes, the effect was more than four times greater than for the statewide sample of 

communities.10 

What accounts for the relationship between outlet density and violence? 

The research that has been done so far cannot pinpoint exactly why having more outlets in a small area 

seems to result in more violence.  Various explanations have been proposed.  One is that alcohol outlets 

can be a source of social disorder.  A liquor store parking lot full of people drinking in their cars or on the 

curb and broken bottles littering the area outside a bar may send a message that this is a neighborhood in 

which normal rules about orderly behavior are not enforced.  Another possible explanation is that a 

neighborhood with a large number of outlets acts as a magnet for people who are more inclined to be 

violent or more vulnerable to being assaulted.  It is also possible that a high number of outlets results in a 

large number of people under the influence of alcohol – which makes them both more likely to be violent 

and less able to defend themselves.11   It is most probable that all of these factors come into play. 

What is the relationship of outlet density to other alcohol problems? 

The density of alcohol outlets has also been found to be related to other alcohol problems such as drinking 

and driving, higher rates of motor vehicle-related pedestrian injuries, and child abuse and neglect.1213     

How do governments regulate outlet density?  

States and communities can regulate the number of bars, restaurants, and stores that sell alcohol in a given 

area.  Sometimes the number and location of alcohol outlets is not limited at all.  In some jurisdictions, 

the number of alcohol outlets is limited based on the population of the area – only so many outlets per 

thousand residents, for example.  In other cases, the location of outlets is regulated – for example, some 

states or communities set minimum distances from schools or churches.  Research increasingly finds, 

however, that geographic density is the key aspect of outlet location – that is, the distance between 

outlets.  Where over-concentrations of outlets occur, greater problems arise. 

Governments can use their regulatory powers to reduce violence by: 

• Making rules that set minimum distances between alcohol outlets;  

• Limiting new licenses for areas that already have outlets too close together;  

Page 67



 
How Alcohol Outlets Affect Neighborhood Violence 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 5 of 7 

• Not issuing a new license when a particular location goes out of business;  

• Permanently closing outlets that repeatedly violate liquor laws (such as by selling alcohol to 

minors or to intoxicated persons or allowing illicit drug sales or prostitution on the premises). 

What implications do these findings have for state and local licensing policies? 

The research strongly suggests that limits on outlet density may be an effective means of reducing alcohol 

problems, especially violence.  States and communities can use controls on the number and location of 

alcohol outlets as a tool for reducing violence, creating a safer and healthier alcohol environment, and 

improving the quality of life of a community. 

What other alcohol policies are important? 

Alcohol is a legal and widely consumed commodity; but it is also a commodity that can create a variety of 

serious health and social problems.  Alcohol policies are an important tool for preventing these problems.  

Every day, states and communities make decisions about the sale of alcohol: who can sell it, when and 

where it can be sold, who it can be sold to.  State and local laws and policies control many aspects of the 

system by which alcohol is manufactured, marketed, sold, purchased, and consumed.  

Regulations serve a variety of purposes, for example, they help ensure that tax revenues are collected.  

But the regulation of the business of selling alcohol goes beyond economic concerns.  Each element of the 

regulatory system provides opportunities for creating a healthier social environment with respect to 

alcohol.  For example, regulations can prevent unsafe sales practices – such as prohibiting all-you-can-

drink specials that encourage intoxication.  Regulations can control advertising and promotion that 

appeals to minors and establish the minimum age and training qualifications for people who sell and serve 

alcohol.  Each type of regulation has the potential to ensure that alcohol is consumed in a safe and healthy 

manner. 

What aspects of alcohol availability can be regulated? 

The regulation of alcohol sales can have an impact on the availability of alcohol – that is, how easy and 

convenient it is to buy.  Some states and communities try to make alcohol less available by selling it only 

in limited places – for example, state liquor stores.  Other communities sell it more freely – making it 

available in grocery stores, convenience stores, gas stations, laundromats, drive-through windows, and so 

forth.  States and communities can also limit the hours and days of sale, and other aspects of the 

Page 68



 
How Alcohol Outlets Affect Neighborhood Violence 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 6 of 7 

conditions of sale.  The regulation of availability is important because research generally shows that when 

alcohol is more easily available, people drink more and more alcohol problems occur. 

Page 69



 
How Alcohol Outlets Affect Neighborhood Violence 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 7 of 7 

References 

 
1 Scribner RA, Mason KE, Simonsen NR, Theall K, Chotalia J, Johnson S, Schneider SK, DeJong W (2010)., An 
ecological analysis of alcohol-outlet density and campus-reported violence at 32 U.S. colleges,  J Stud Alcohol 
Drugs; 71(2): 184-91 
2 Gruenewald, P.J.; Freisthler, B.; Remer, L.; LaScala, E.A.; Treno, A.J.; and Ponicki, W.R. "Ecological associations 
of alcohol outlets with underage and young adult injuries," Alcoholism: Clinical & Experimental Research, 
34(3):519-527, 2010. 
3 Livingston, M. A longitudinal analysis of alcohol outlet density and domestic violence (2011), Addiction, Volume 
106, Issue 5, pages 919–925. 
4 Cunradi, C.B. "Neighborhoods, alcohol outlets and intimate partner violence: Addressing research gaps in 
explanatory mechanisms," International Journal of Environmental Research and Public Health, 7:799-813, 2010. 
5Freisthler, B. "Alcohol use, drinking venue utilization, and child physical abuse: Results from a pilot study," 
Journal of Family Violence, September 29, 2010.  
6 Gorman. D., Speer. P., Gruenewald, P., and Labouvie, E. (2001) Journal of Studies on Alcohol, 62: 628-636. 
7 Gruenewald, P.J. and Remer, L. "Changes in outlet densities affect violence rates," Alcoholism: Clinical and 
Experimental Research, 30(7):1184-1193, July 2006. 
8 Gruenewald, P.J. and Remer, L.  Changes in outlet densities affect violence rates.  In review, Alcoholism: Clinical 
and Experimental Research, 2004. 
9 Alaniz, M.,  Cartmill, R.,  and Parker, R. (1998) Immigrants and violence, Hispanic Journal of Behavioral 
Sciences, 20, 155-174. 
10 Gruenewald, P.J. and Remer, L. "Changes in outlet densities affect violence rates," Alcoholism: Clinical and 
Experimental Research, 30(7):1184-1193, July 2006. 
11 Gorman, et al. (2001). 
12 Freisthler, B., Midanik, L.T. and Gruenewald, P.J.  Alcohol outlets and child physical abuse and neglect: 
Applying routine activities theory to the study of child maltreatment.  Journal of Studies on Alcohol, 65, 586-592, 
2004. 
13 Stockwell, T. and Gruenewald. P. (2001) Controls on Physical Availability of Alcohol, in Heather, N., Peters. T., 
and Stockwell, T. (eds.), International Handbook of Alcohol Dependence and Problems,  John Wiley and Sons, Ltd. 

Page 70

http://www.safetylit.org/week/journalpage.php?jid=8396
http://www.safetylit.org/week/journalpage.php?jid=8396
http://onlinelibrary.wiley.com/doi/10.1111/j.1360-0443.2010.03333.x/abstract
http://onlinelibrary.wiley.com/doi/10.1111/add.2011.106.issue-5/issuetoc
http://onlinelibrary.wiley.com/doi/10.1111/add.2011.106.issue-5/issuetoc


Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	Licensing Sub-Committee agenda
	Membership:
	Webcasting notice


	4 Hearing Procedure Rules
	Addendum Licensing and Regulatory Sub-Committee Virtual Procedural Rules
	Introduction
	Administration in Relation to the Hearing
	Access to Information
	Time and Place of Hearing
	During the Hearing
	Deliberations and Exclusion of the Press and the Public
	NOTE

	5 New Hub and Off Licence, 25a High Street, Chesham, HP5 1BG
	Buckinghamshire Council              Licensing Sub-Committee Hearing Date:
	9 April 2024, 14:30 hours
	2. Background
	3. The Application
	4. Relevant Representations
	4.1.5 The Local Environmental Health Authority (Head of Environmental Health): No response received.
	5. Licensing Officer’s Observations:
	6. Policy Considerations
	Anti-social behaviour
	Prevention of crime and disorder
	Prevention of a public nuisance
	Prevention of a public Nuisance
	2.21  The 2003 Act enables licensing authorities and responsible authorities, through representations, to consider what constitutes public nuisance and what is appropriate to prevent it in terms of conditions attached to specific premises licences and...
	7. Links to Council Policy Objectives
	8. Resources, Risk and Other Implications
	9. Determination by the Licensing Sub-Committee
	240409 New Hub Off Licence - Appx1
	240409 New Hub Off Licence - Appx2
	240409 New Hub Off Licence - Appx3-Redacted
	240409 New Hub Off Licence - Appx4
	240409 New Hub Off Licence - Appx5
	240409 New Hub Off Licence - Appx6
	240409 New Hub Off Licence - Appx7
	240409 New Hub Off Licence - Appx8
	240409 New Hub Off Licence - Appx9
	240409 New Hub Off Licence - Appx10
	AlcoholOutletsAffectViolence.pdf
	Introduction
	What is the relationship between outlet density and violence?
	What accounts for the relationship between outlet density and violence?
	What is the relationship of outlet density to other alcohol problems?
	How do governments regulate outlet density?
	What implications do these findings have for state and local licensing policies?
	What other alcohol policies are important?
	What aspects of alcohol availability can be regulated?
	References






